
 

 

SOUTH JORDAN CITY 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

September 4, 2018 

 

Present: Mayor Dawn Ramsey, Council Member Patrick Harris, Council Member Brad 

Marlor, Council Member Jason McGuire, Council Member Don Shelton, Council 

Member Tamara Zander, CM Gary Whatcott, Deputy Fire Chief Chris Dawson, 

Associate Director of Parks and Recreation Colby Hill, Public Works Director 

Jason Rasmussen, Strategic Services Director Don Tingey, Development Services 

Director Brad Klavano, City Attorney Ryan Loose, ACM Dustin Lewis, City 

Commerce Director Brian Preece, Finance Director Sunil Naidu, IT Director Jon 

Day, Police Chief Jeff Carr, City Council Secretary MaryAnn Dean 

 

Others: See Attachment A 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

A. Welcome and Roll Call – Mayor Dawn Ramsey 

 

Mayor Ramsey welcomed everyone present. All members of the City Council were present.  

 

B. Invocation – By Mayor Dawn Ramsey 

 

Mayor Ramsey offered the invocation.  

 

C. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Mayor Ramsey recognized and introduced the scouts present.  

 

Jackson Hooker, scout, led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

D. Minute Approval 
 

D.1.  August 21, 2018 Joint Council & Planning Commission Study Meeting 

D.2.  August 21, 2018 City Council Meeting 

 

Council Member Harris made a motion to approve the August 21, 2018 Joint Council & 

Planning Commission study meeting minutes and the August 21, 2018 City Council 

meeting minutes, as printed. Council Member Marlor seconded the motion. The vote was 

unanimous in favor.  
 

E. Public Comment: 

 

Mayor Ramsey read the following prepared statement “As an update to all residents concerned 

about Glenmoor Golf Course, the City and the receiver have been working on options where the 



South Jordan City 2 

City Council Meeting 

September 4, 2018 

 
 

 

city will preserve the 18 hole golf course through various funding options that do not require a 

General Obligation Bond, raising taxes, or selling Mulligans. The city and receiver expect to 

enter into an agreement in the next few weeks. As a Council, we look forward to completing the 

transaction, preserving this historic gem, and conserving this precious open space. We look 

forward to sharing more details with you in the future.”  

 

Council Member Shelton made a motion to amend the agenda to remove action item I. 

(Resolution R2018-47), and add a new item I., Resolution R2018-45 a Resolution providing 

for the rescinding of Resolution R2018-43, calling for a special bond election to be held on 

November 6th 2018 and related matters. Council Member Harris seconded the motion. Roll 

call vote. The vote was unanimous in favor.  
 

Marc Pekkernen, 9706 Skye Drive, representing the residents of the Glenmoor Village Skye 

HOA. He said he met with the Mayor and City Manager and knows they were all trying hard to 

come to an equitable solution. He thanked everyone.  

 

David Booth, superintendent at Glenmoor Golf Course, 9800 S. 4800 W., said he has worked at 

Glenmoor Golf Course for over 20 years. He attended all 3 public meetings. He has been 

encouraged with the support of the residents. He is glad to see people love the golf course. He 

said Glenmoor is a good, challenging public golf course. It can and will be better. He thanked 

everyone for their hard work to find a way to preserve the golf course.  

 

Ron Branca, 13240 S. Trail Rider Cir. (Draper), said he is the General Manager of the 

Glenmoor golf course. He said Glenmoor is the busiest golf course he has run. He said South 

Jordan City is running great; they are doing a remarkable job. He is delighted that they were able 

to come together.  

 

Gina Sipos, 11718 S. Current Creek Cir., said there is a parking problem at the Midas Creek 

park. She said she sent an email summarizing their complaints and proposing possible solutions. 

She said they are happy to have the sports teams play there. Currently, 5 soccer teams and 2 

football teams use the property on 11670 South. The excess traffic is causing backups in the 

neighborhood. She is also concerned about kids and balls going into the street. She said she 

would like a parking lot, some red curbing to limit the parking, and/or signs in the area. They 

would like to see parking on only the north side of the street. If there was a problem, there is 

nowhere for emergency vehicles to park or pull in.  

 

Victor Sipos, 11718 S. Current Creek Cir., said they want the kids to have an opportunity to play 

on the field. Another concern is that there is no place for the kids to go to the bathroom. He said 

they could take 15-20 ft. of the park and put in 20-30 parking stalls. They could also allow 

parking on the grass. He noted that South Jordan owns a parcel to the north. He showed that 

property on a map (Attachment B). He said the property is fenced off and not being used for a 

city purpose. They could use that for a parking lot. They could also paint the curbs red.  

 

It was noted that ACM Lewis and Associate Director Hill are working on the issue. The Sipos’ 

will be hearing from staff on this issue.  



South Jordan City 3 

City Council Meeting 

September 4, 2018 

 
 

 

 

Scott Wherli, 9944 Birdie Way, thanked everyone for their effort and work on the Glenmoor 

golf course issue.  

 

Titus (scout), address unknown, said he has heard about kids riding their bike on the street 

without a bike lane. He said that is worrying to him. They should put more bike lanes in the 

neighborhood.  

 

Lincoln Chapel, 3079 Current Creek Dr., said at the Midas Creek Park, there is a drinking 

fountain that only runs in July. He said he thinks it should be on more months of the year. He 

said right now, they have to ride home or ask a neighbor to get a drink.  

 

Braxton (inaudible), 2858 Rolling Creek Way, said kids almost get hit by cars because there are 

no bike lanes. They need more bike lanes so no incidents happen.  

 

Kathy DeWitt, 9450 S. Autumn Meadow Cir., thanked the City Council. She said if they have 

something worth fighting for, it is important to speak out. She thanked the city leaders and the 

Mayor for keeping this gem.  

 

Tony Gold, 3093 Current Creek Dr., said west of their neighborhood, the park strip area has 

been dead for a year and a half. They are told the issue is up to the Federal Government.  

 

CM Whatcott said they are trying to get an easement on the Bureau of Reclamation property. 

Without the easement, they can’t place pipes there. He believes it will be approved, but is a slow 

process.  

 

F. Presentation: Point of Mountain Presentation (By Envision Utah Representative)  

 

Ari Bruening, Envision Utah, introduced Robert Reese. He reviewed a prepared presentation on 

the Point of the Mountain development (Attachment C).  

 

G. Public Hearing: Ordinance 2018-19, vacating a 20-foot-wide public utility easement 

and a 40-foot-wide utility easement of the SoJo Subdivision Phase 2 located at 10377 

South Jordan Gateway; (By Planning Director, Steven Schaefermeyer) (RCV) 

  

Planning Director Schaefermeyer reviewed the background information on this item. He said the 

easements only serve this property.  

 

Mayor Ramsey opened the public hearing. There were no comments. She closed the public 

hearing.  

 

Council Member Marlor made a motion to approve Ordinance 2018-19. Council Member 

McGuire seconded the motion. Roll call vote. The vote was unanimous in favor.  
 



South Jordan City 4 

City Council Meeting 

September 4, 2018 

 
 

 

H. Public Hearing: Ordinance 2018-20, enacting 5.82 and amending Chapter 12.08 of 

the South Jordan City Municipal Code, and amending the City’s construction 

Standards and Specifications regarding the regulation of wireless facilities. (By Staff 

Attorney Todd Sheeran and Development Services Director, Brad Klavano) (RCV) 

 

Attorney Todd Sheeran reviewed the background information on this item. He noted that the city 

received some comments regarding this item from Verizon late today. They will work with 

Verizon.  

 

Development Services Director Klavano said there are 3 different ways to mount these facilities. 

He reviewed each type. They will be doing some tweaks to this Ordinance, as needed, over the 

next several weeks.  

 

Mayor Ramsey opened the public hearing. There were no comments. She closed the public 

hearing.  

 

Council Member Shelton asked if they have heard from any other wireless carrier? Mr. Sheeran 

said no. Council Member Shelton asked if they should wait to pass the Ordinance? City Attorney 

Loose said because of the change in state statute, the longer they wait, the more chance people 

have to do an application without the Ordinance. Staff can make it work and amend the 

Ordinance if needed. CM Whatcott noted that Verizon has been aggressive on this issue state 

wide. Strategic Services Director Tingey said they have had discussions with other providers 

over the last few months; they have been cooperative and want to work with the city.  

 

Council Member Harris asked how it is decided which of the three structures are used? 

Development Services Director Klavano said the Ordinance allows the city some discretion to 

direct them. The first option is to use an existing utility pole, their next preferred option is to put 

a pole in place of a street light. The last option is a free standing pole. Free standing poles are 

more likely to be used in areas where the other two options don’t exist.  

 

Council Member Marlor asked if they would be considered a utility provider and be subject to 

franchise fees? Mr. Sheeran said yes, it is similar to any other utility.  

 

Council Member Shelton made a motion to approve Ordinance 2018-20. Council Member 

McGuire seconded the motion. Roll call vote. The vote was unanimous in favor.  
 

*Note – the original item I. (Action Item: Resolution R2018-47, authorizing the Mayor to enter 

into an Interlocal Agreement with Salt Lake County to receive services of the Salt lake County 

Election Division during the 2018 Special Municipal Election as an entirely absentee (vote by 

mail) Ballot Election.) was removed from the agenda. A new item I. was added. See vote in item 

E. The new item I. is listed below.  

 

I. Action Item: Resolution R2018-45, a Resolution providing for the rescinding of 

Resolution R2018-43, calling for a special bond election to be held on November 6th 

2018 and related matters 



South Jordan City 5 

City Council Meeting 

September 4, 2018 

 
 

 

 

City Attorney Loose reviewed the background information on this item.  

 

Council Member Shelton made a motion to approve Resolution R2018-45. Council Member 

Harris seconded the motion.  
 

At Council Member McGuire’s request, the Mayor re-read the prepared statement regarding 

Glenmoor. “As an update to all residents concerned about Glenmoor Golf Course, the City and 

the receiver have been working on options where the city will preserve the 18 hole golf course 

through various funding options that do not require a General Obligation Bond, raising taxes, or 

selling Mulligans. The city and receiver expect to enter into an agreement in the next few weeks. 

As a Council, we look forward to completing the transaction, preserving this historic gem, and 

conserving this precious open space. We look forward to sharing more details with you in the 

future.” 

  

Council Member Shelton expressed appreciation to staff and the City Council for their diligent 

efforts on this. They still have a lot of work ahead of them. This is the right path for the city and 

those who love Glenmoor.  

 

Council Member Marlor said all of the City Council members had a different angle and they 

were all vocal. They all wanted to preserve the open space, but had different visions and 

expectations. He is pleased that they believe to have found a way to preserve the open space 

without any of the negatives that concerned him greatly, such as a tax increase or jeopardizing 

Mulligans. He is excited to see what takes place.  

 

Council Member Zander concurred. She also had concerns with raising taxes. She does not think 

that the city should run the golf course and that will not necessarily be the outcome. She feels the 

outcome will be better than that.  

 

Council Member Harris said he was opposed to raising taxes but in favor of preserving green 

space and saving the golf course. He is thrilled that they were able to do that. It took a lot of 

work by the Mayor, City Council, staff, and the residents. The residents provided valuable 

information to make these decisions. He said they have no intentions at all of selling Mulligans. 

The city has the ability to have Mulligans and Glenmoor at the same time.  

 

Mayor Ramsey said the overwhelming majority, almost 100 percent, of the people she talked to 

said they wanted to preserve open space. They also voiced strongly that they didn’t want to pay 

more to preserve a golf course. She said this is a great day for all residents and a win for the city. 

She thanked the staff and the City Council. She said the City Council was united in doing what 

was best for the city, and they reached a resolution to this unanimously.  

 

Roll call vote. The vote was unanimous in favor.  
 

J. Reports and Comments: (Mayor, City Council, City Manager, and City Attorney) 

 



South Jordan City 6 

City Council Meeting 

September 4, 2018 

 
 

 

Council Member McGuire reported on a meeting that he and Council Member Zander attended, 

held by the Salt Lake Realtors. It was beneficial to hear the options for the housing crisis. It will 

effect South Jordan. He feels it is beneficial that it’s happening while they are updating the 

master plan. He discussed the need to preserve their identity while still staying in good standing 

with the state legislature.  

 

Council Member Zander also discussed the meeting with the Salt Lake Realtors. There are key 

things happening in the city. She indicated that Mayor Ramsey is good at networking and has 

positions on boards that will be key in helping the city. She said as Salt Lake County gets a large 

portion of their property taxes, communication with Salt Lake County is key. She said getting 

east/west traffic corridors is huge.  

 

Council Member Marlor expressed appreciation for those on the City Council, as well as staff. 

He also expressed appreciation to the residents that care about the city.  

 

Council Member Harris said there were some historical markers stolen. To replace those plaques 

is $5,000. He asked if they could look into an alternative material that would still maintain a 

historical look. CM Whatcott said staff would look into it. Council Member Harris said the theft 

raised concerns about the valuable bronze statues at the cemetery. He asked if they had ideas for 

increased security in that location.  

 

Council Member Harris asked for a progress report on the South Jordan Parkway road 

construction project. Development Services Director Klavano said they are moving ahead. His 

understanding is that they are still shooting to be finished the end of October.  

 

Council Member Shelton noted the chamber golf tournament. He reported on the Association of 

Municipal Councils meeting. There were some things brought up about accessory dwelling units 

and the issue was also brought up with the Western Growth Coalition. He will follow up with 

staff on that issue.  

 

Mayor Ramsey said she has been offered a spot to serve on the EDCUtah Board of Trustees. She 

will accept that offer. It is a great opportunity for the city. She noted the Salt Lake County fair 

that was recently held in the city. It was a privilege to be part of that. She said she has attended 

lots of school events, including a couple of DARE graduations. She noted a press conference she 

attended regarding the repeal of the medical device tax. She noted some suicide prevention 

training. She said she attended the chamber of commerce golf tournament and was able to greet 

people at the city sponsored hole. She said she attended the Jordan School District Board of 

Education meetings, and said they will be addressing some major boundary changes in 

October/November.  

 

Mayor Ramsey said the Southwest Mayors met together. They represent 1/3 of Salt Lake 

County. They are concerned with the narrative prevalent in the legislature that cities aren’t doing 

anything to help with the housing crisis. They are working to put some data together and they 

will invite the legislature to a meeting and share their facts with them. They are told that the 



South Jordan City 7 

City Council Meeting 

September 4, 2018 

 
 

 

legislature is going to take away some of their zoning authority because the cities are not doing 

their part. That is not true. They are trying to educate the legislature on that.  

 

Mayor Ramsey said things are going well with the Sewer Board. She noted that she was invited 

to the White House on September 20th to attend a conference with women Mayors. The goal is to 

meet and have a group discussion on local issues they face.  

 

There were no staff reports.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Council Member Marlor made a motion to adjourn. Council Member Harris seconded the 

motion. The vote was unanimous in favor.  
 

The September 4, 2018 City Council meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 

  

This is a true and correct copy of the September 4, 2018 City Council Meeting Minutes, 

which were approved on September 18, 2018. 

  
South Jordan City Recorder 
 








